
 
 

Representations made for Regulation 16 Consultation for the 
Medstead and Four Marks Neighbourhood Plan between the dates 

of Friday 28th August – Friday 9th October 
 

MFMEH-01 Sport England 
 

MFMEH-02 Environment Agency 
 

MFMEH-03 Highways England 
 

MFMEH-04 Alexander Barber 
 

MFMEH-05 National Grid 
 

MFMEH-06 Southern Planning Practise obo Croudace Homes 
 

MFMEH-07 Pegasus obo Hurlock Investments 
 

MFMEH-08 Southern Planning Practise obo Mr P Charles 
 

MFMEH-09 Country Estates 
 

MFMEH-10 Thames Water 
 

MFMEH-11 Savills obo CALA Homes 
 

MFMEH-12 Matplan obo Messrs I Foden and H Bethell 
 

MFMEH-13 South Downs National Park Authority 
 

MFMEH-14 Hampshire County Council 
 

MFMEH-15 Historic England 
 

MFMEH-16 Barton Willmore obo Winchester College 



1

Hannah Collier

From: Matthew Jeal < >
Sent: 02 October 2015 12:18
To: EHDC – Neighbourhood Plans Shared
Subject: Medstead & Four Marks NP
Attachments: SScanner15100212230.pdf

Importance: High

Dear Victoria, 
 
Please find attached Country Estates response to the draft Medstead & Four Marks NP.  Hard copy to follow in the 
post. 
 
Kind regards 
 
Matthew Jeal 
Director of Country Estates Ltd & Darcliffe Homes Ltd  

 
 Tel 

0118 9595857 Fax 
 Mob 

 
www.countryestates.co.uk 
 
From: administrator@countryestates.co.uk [mailto:administrator@countryestates.co.uk]  
Sent: 02 October 2015 13:24 
To: Matthew Jeal <  
Subject: Message from Scanner 
 
 

mailto:administrator@countryestates.co.uk
mailto:administrator@countryestates.co.uk
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Hannah Collier

From: Thames Water Planning Policy < >
Sent: 05 October 2015 17:13
To: EHDC – Neighbourhood Plans Shared
Subject: FW: EAST HAMPSHIRE - MEDSTEAD AND FOUR MARKS NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN 

- SUBMISSION PLAN
Attachments: 15.10.05 L DW East Hants Medstead and Four Marks Neighbourhood Plan.doc

Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
Please find our response to the above attached on behalf of Thames Water. 
 
Regards, 
 
Katherine Jones  
Planning Administrator  
Planning  
   
Savills, Ground Floor,Hawker House, 5-6 Napier Court, Napier Road, Reading, RG1 8BW  
 

Tel  :+44   
Email    
Website  :www.savills.co.uk  

 

 

 Before printing, think about the environment  
 
From: Katie Knowles [mailto:clerk.medsteadpc@gmail.com]  
Sent: 05 October 2015 16:21 
To: Thames Water Planning Policy 
Subject: Re: EAST HAMPSHIRE - MEDSTEAD AND FOUR MARKS NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN - SUBMISSION PLAN 
 
Sir/Madam  
 
Your response needs to be addressed direct to East Hants District Council who are currently consulting on 
the Medstead and Four Marks Neighbourhood Plan Submission document. Details are available on their 
website.  
 
Regards  
 
 
Miss Katie Knowles 
Clerk to Medstead Parish Council 

 
Tel:  
parishclerk@medstead.hampshire.org.uk 
www.medstead.hampshire.org.uk 
 
 
On 5 October 2015 at 14:32, Thames Water Planning Policy <ThamesWaterPlanningPolicy@savills.com> 
wrote: 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

  

Please find our response to the above attached on behalf of Thames Water. 

mailto:clerk.medsteadpc@gmail.com
http://www.medstead.hampshire.org.uk
mailto:ThamesWaterPlanningPolicy@savills.com
hcollier
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Regards, 

  

Katherine Jones  
Planning Administrator  
Planning  
   
Savills, Ground Floor,Hawker House, 5-6 Napier Court, Napier Road, Reading RG1 8BW  

Tel  :+44 (   
Email    
Website  :www.savills.co.uk 

 

 

 Before printing, think about the environment  

  

NOTICE: This email is intended for the named recipient only. It may contain privileged and confidential 
information. If you are not the intended recipient, notify the sender immediately and destroy this email. You 
must not copy, distribute or take action in reliance upon it. Whilst all efforts are made to safeguard emails, 
the Savills Group cannot guarantee that attachments are virus free or compatible with your systems and does 
not accept liability in respect of viruses or computer problems experienced. The Savills Group reserves the 
right to monitor all email communications through its internal and external networks. 

Savills plc. Registered in England No 2122174. Registered office: 33 Margaret Street, London, W1G 0JD. 

Savills plc is a holding company, subsidiaries of which are authorised and regulated by the Financial 
Conduct Authority (FCA) 

Savills (UK) Limited. A subsidiary of Savills plc. Registered in England No 2605138. Registered office: 33 
Margaret Street, London, W1G 0JD. 

Savills (UK) Ltd is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority in respect of insurance 
mediation activity. 

Savills Commercial Limited. A subsidiary of Savills plc. Registered in England No 2605125. Registered 
office: 33 Margaret Street, London, W1G 0JD. 

Please note any advice contained or attached in this email is informal and given purely as guidance unless 
otherwise explicitly stated. Our views on price are not intended as a formal valuation and should not be 
relied upon as such. They are given in the course of our estate agency role. No liability is given to any third 
party and the figures suggested are in accordance with Professional Standards PS1 and PS2 of the RICS 
Valuation – Professional Standards, effective from 6th January 2014. Any advice attached is not a formal 
("Red Book") valuation, and neither Savills nor the author can accept any responsibility to any third party 
who may seek to rely upon it, as a whole or any part as such. If formal advice is required this will be 
explicitly stated along with our understanding of limitations and purpose. 

 



 

 

 

 

Thames Water Plc 
 
Clearwater Court,  
4

th
 Floor West, 

Vastern Rd, Reading,  
Berks, RG1 8DB 
 
T  0203 577 8800 
 www.thames-water.com 
 
Registered in England and Wales 

No. 2366623, Registered office 

Clearwater Court, Vastern Road, 

Reading, Berks, RG1 8DB 

 

S 

Secretar 

 

 

 

Planning Policy 

Thames Water Utilities Ltd           

 

Sent by email: neighbourhoodplans@easthants.gov.uk  

 

 

Contact 

Phone 

E-Mail 

 
Mark Mathews 

 

thameswaterplanningp

olicy@savills.com   
 
 
 
 
 

14 October 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

Dear Sir/Madam 

 

EAST HAMPSHIRE – MEDSTEAD AND FOUR MARKS NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN – 

SUBMISSION PLAN 

 
As you will be aware from previous representations, Thames Water are the 

statutory sewerage undertaker for the area and are hence a “specific 

consultation body” in accordance with the Town & Country Planning (Local 
Development) Regulations 2012. We have the following comments on the 
Neighbourhood Plan submission version: 
 

Infrastructure 1.19- 1.26 

 

Thames Water welcome the reference at paragraph 1.20 that sewage treatment 

has been reviewed by a Working Group, but are disappointed that our previous 

comments have not been incorporated into the Medstead and Four Marks 

Neighbourhood Plan.  

 

Paragraph 1.22-1.24 of the draft plan sets out that the Community Infrastructure 

Levy (CIL) can be used to fund necessary infrastructure provision. However, CIL 

is not generally used to fund wastewater/sewerage infrastructure as water 

companies are funded in accordance with 5 year business plans approved with 

Ofwat as set out below. It is therefore important that wastewater/sewerage 

infrastructure is specifically covered in the Medstead and Four Marks 

Neighbourhood Plan, as has been the case in numerous other Neighbourhood 

Plans. 

 

Sewerage/wastewater infrastructure is essential to any development. Failure to 

ensure that any required upgrades to the infrastructure network are delivered 

alongside development could result in adverse impacts in the form of internal and 

external sewer flooding, pollution of land and water courses. 

mailto:neighbourhoodplans@easthants.gov.uk
mailto:thameswaterplanningpolicy@savills.com
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New development should be co-ordinated with the infrastructure it demands and 

to take into account the capacity of existing infrastructure. Paragraph 156 of the 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), March 2012, states: “Local 

planning authorities should set out strategic policies for the area in the 

Local Plan. This should include strategic policies to deliver:……the 

provision of infrastructure for water supply and wastewater….” 

 
Paragraph 162 of the NPPF relates to infrastructure and states: “Local planning 

authorities should work with other authorities to: assess the quality and 

capacity of infrastructure for water supply and wastewater and  its 

treatment…..take account of the need for strategic infrastructure including 

nationally significant infrastructure within their areas.”    

 

The web based National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) includes a section 

on ‘water supply, wastewater and water quality’ and sets out that Local Plans 

should be the focus for ensuring that investment plans of water and 

sewerage/wastewater companies align with development needs. The introduction 

to this section also sets out that “Adequate water and wastewater 

infrastructure is needed to support sustainable development”  (Paragraph: 

001, Reference ID: 34-001-20140306). 
 
It is important that developers demonstrate that adequate capacity exists both on 

and off the site to serve the development and that it would not lead to problems 

for existing users. In some circumstances this may make it necessary for 

developers to carry out appropriate studies to ascertain whether the proposed 

development will lead to overloading of existing water & sewerage infrastructure. 

Where there is a capacity problem and no improvements are programmed, then 

the developer needs to contact the water company to agree what improvements 

are required and how they will be funded prior to any occupation of the 

development. 

 

It is therefore important that the Neighbourhood Plan considers the net increase 

in water and wastewater demand to serve proposed developments and also any 

impact the development may have off site further down the network, if no/low 

water pressure and internal/external sewage flooding of property is to be 

avoided. 

 

Thames Water  therefore recommend that developers engage with them at the 

earliest opportunity to establish the following: 
 

 The developments demand for sewerage infrastructure both on and off 
site and can it be met 

 The developments demand for Sewage Treatment infrastructure both on 
and off site and can it be met 

 The surface water drainage requirements and flood risk of the 
development both on and off site and can it be met 
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To accord with the NPPF and the above, text along the lines of the following 

should be added to the Neighbourhood Plan:  

 

“Water Supply & Sewerage Infrastructure 

 

It is essential that developers demonstrate that adequate water supply and 

sewerage infrastructure capacity exists both on and off the site to serve 

the development and that it would not lead to problems for existing users. 

In some circumstances this may make it necessary for developers to carry 

out appropriate studies to ascertain whether the proposed development 

will lead to overloading of existing water & sewerage infrastructure. Where 

there is a capacity problem and no improvements are programmed by the 

water company, then the developer needs to contact the water company to 

agree what improvements are required and how they will be funded prior to 

any occupation of the development. 

 

Further information for Developers on sewerage infrastructure can be 

found on Thames Water’s website at:  

http://www.thameswater.co.uk/home/11425.htm 

 

Or contact can be made with Thames Water Developer Services 

By post at:  Thames Water Developer Services, Reading Mailroom, Rose 

Kiln Court, Rose Kiln Lane, Reading RG2 0BY; 

By telephone on: 0845 850 2777; 

Or by email: developer.services@thameswater.co.uk” 

 
As part of our five year business plan Thames Water advise OFWAT on the 
funding required to accommodate growth at all our sewage/wastewater treatment 
works. As a result we base our investment programmes on development plan 
allocations which form the clearest picture of the shape of the community as set 
out in the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 162) and the National 
Planning Practice Guidance.  

 

The time to deliver solutions should not be underestimated. For example, local 
network upgrades take around 18 months and sewage treatment works 
upgrades can take 3-5 years. In general terms, Thames Water’s preferred 
approach for growth is for a small number of large clearly defined sites to be 
delivered rather than a large number of smaller sites as this would simplify the 
delivery of any necessary sewerage/wastewater infrastructure upgrades. 

 
As a general comment, the impact of brownfield sites on the local sewerage 
treatment works is less than the impact of greenfield sites. This is due to the 
existence of historical flows from brownfield sites, as opposed to greenfield sites 
that have not previously been drained. The necessary infrastructure may already 
be in place for brownfield development. We would therefore generally support 

http://www.thameswater.co.uk/home/11425.htm
mailto:developer.services@thameswater.co.uk
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the use of  brownfield sites before greenfield sites. We also wish to highlight the 
opportunity to introduce sustainable urban drainage systems into brownfield 
development to reduce surface water flows into the sewers. It is important to 
maximise capacity in the sewers for foul sewage thus reducing the risk of sewer 
flooding. 
 
Where development is being proposed within 15 metres of a sewage pumping 
station, the developer or local authority should liaise with Thames Water to 
consider whether an odour and / or noise and / or vibration impact assessment is 
required as part of the promotion of the site and potential planning application 
submission. Any impact assessment would determine whether the proposed 
development would result in adverse amenity impact for new occupiers, as those 
new occupiers would be located in closer proximity to a pumping station. 

 

Where development is being proposed within 800 metres of a 
sewage/wastewater treatment works, the developer or local authority should 
liaise with Thames Water to consider whether an odour impact assessment is 
required as part of the promotion of the site and potential planning application 
submission. The odour impact assessment would determine whether the 
proposed development would result in adverse amenity impact for new 
occupiers, as those new occupiers would be located in closer proximity to a 
sewage treatment works. 

 
Information for Developers on wastewater infrastructure within Thames Water’s 
area, can be found on Thames Water’s website at: 
http://www.thameswater.co.uk/cps/rde/xchg/corp/hs.xsl/558.htm 
Or contact can be made with Thames Water Developer Services by: 
Post at:  Thames Water Developer Services, Reading Mailroom, Rose Kiln Court, 
Rose Kiln Lane, Reading RG2 0BY; Telephone on: 0845 850 2777; Email: 
developer.services@thameswater.co.uk 
 
 
I trust the above is satisfactory, but please do not hesitate to contact me if you 
have any queries. 
 

 

Yours faithfully 

 

 

Mark Mathews 

Town Planning Manager 

Thames Water Utilities Ltd. 

http://www.thameswater.co.uk/cps/rde/xchg/corp/hs.xsl/558.htm
mailto:developer.services@thameswater.co.uk
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Hannah Collier

From: Rebecca Altman 
Sent: 06 October 2015 11:15
To: EHDC – Neighbourhood Plans Shared
Cc: Adam Colebrook; 'Richard Potts'
Subject: Medstead and Four Marks Neighbourhood Plan - Representation on behalf of 

CALA Homes (Thames) Ltd
Attachments: 151006 Rep on behalf of CALA Homes to Medstead and FM NP.pdf; Site Location 

Plan Land east of 20 to 28 Lymington Bottom Road.pdf

Dear Sir/ Madam 
 
Please find attached representation to the Medstead and Four Marks Neighbourhood Plan, submitted on behalf of 
CALA Homes (Thames) Ltd.  
 
I would be grateful if you could confirm receipt.  
 
If you have any queries, or require any further information, please do not hesitate to contact me.  
 
Kind regards,  
 
Rebecca Altman  
Associate Planner  
Planning  
   
Savills, 2 Charlotte Place, Southampton SO14 0TB  

Tel  :+44   
Mobile  :+44   
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
E: 

DL: +44 (
F: +44 (0) 23 8071 3901

2 Charlotte Place
Southampton SO14 0TB
T: +44 (0) 238 071 3900

savills.com

bc 
 

Offices and associates throughout the Americas, Europe, Asia Pacific, Africa and the Middle East. 
Savills (UK) Limited. Chartered Surveyors. Regulated by RICS. A subsidiary of Savills plc. Registered in England No. 2605138. 
Registered office: 33 Margaret Street, London, W1G 0JD 

Dear Sir/ Madam 
 
MEDSTEAD AND FOUR MARKS NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN CONSULTATION  
REPRESETNATION ON BEHALF OF CALA HOMES (THAMES) LTD 
 
This representation is submitted on behalf of CALA Homes (Thames) Ltd.   
 
The purpose of the representation is to seek a further revision to the proposed Settlement Policy Boundary 
(SPB) for South Medstead, to include land at 20-38 Lymington Bottom Road, which received planning 
permission at appeal for the construction of 75 dwellings on 29 June 2015 (Appeal ref. 2226723; Application 
Ref. 55197/001).  A site location plan is enclosed with this letter.   
 
The extension of the settlement policy boundary is required to ensure that the Neighbourhood Plan (NP) 
meets its own policy objectives and to achieve sustainable development in accordance with Basic Condition 
D for Neighbourhood Plans, as set out in Schedule 4B of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.   
 
It is noted that the Four Marks and Medstead NP leaves the allocation of housing sites to the emerging East 
Hampshire Housing and Employments Allocations Plan, which is due to go to examination at the end of 
October 2015.  All of the sites proposed to be allocated at South Medstead within the East Hampshire Plan 
are greenfield sites which are already subject to planning permission.  This includes sites at Lymington Farm 
(ref. FM1), Land at Friars Oak Farm (ref. FM2) and Land north of Boyneswood Lane (ref. FM3).  Although the 
NP does not specifically allocate these sites, it proposes to redefine the SPB for South Medstead to include 
the sites, in recognition that the principle of residential development is acceptable in these locations (Policy 
1).  Paragraph 4.6 of Policy 1 confirms:   
 
This policy directs development in the parishes to the settlements of Four Marks/ South Medstead and 
Medstead Village.  In doing so, the policy proposes amendments to the Settlement Policy Boundaries (SPB) 
as defined by Policy CP19 of the JCS to accommodate development that has been built since the 2006 Local 
Plan and its proposals map was adopted.  This includes land adjoining but outside the SPB where 
development has been granted planning permission since the SPB was last drawn.  (Savills emphasis).   
 
Currently, Land east of 20-38 Lymington Bottom Road is excluded from the SPB as shown on Policies Map 
Inset 2 in Annexe C.  This means that it would be regarded as ‘countryside’ for the purposes of Policy 1, 
where development would only be supported where it is necessary for purposes related to the rural economy.  
This would clearly be an inappropriate policy restriction, given that the principle of residential development on 
the site is now established through the appeal decision received in June 2015.  As the appeal decision was 
received prior to the submission of the NP in August 2015, it is unclear why a further amendment was not 
made to the SPB at that time.  
 
 

SNPL354668 
 
6 October 2015 
 
 
 
Planning Policy 
East Hampshire District Council 
Penns Place 
PETERSFIELD 
Hampshire 
GU31 4EX 
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In allowing the appeal at Land east of 20-38 Lymington Bottom Road, the Inspector concluded that the site 
was a sustainable location for development and that the scheme would generate significant benefits to the 
local community.  The site is also well located adjacent to the area proposed to be defined as the Railway 
Station Hub under Policy 6 of the NP, where development of new services and community facilities is to be 
encouraged to create a central ‘hub’ for the village and support local tourism, retail and employment.   
 
CALA Homes therefore requests that the Settlement Policy Boundary for South Medstead is extended around 
Land east of 20-38 Lymington Bottom Road, to ensure that the Neighbourhood Plan achieves sustainable 
development in accordance with national policy requirements.   
 
Yours faithfully 
    

 
Rebecca Altman 
Savills Planning 
 
Enc.  
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PRP Architects ©
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Hannah Collier

From: Matthew Utting < >
Sent: 07 October 2015 12:57
To: EHDC – Neighbourhood Plans Shared
Cc: 'Lesley Bethell'; 'ian foden'
Subject: RE: NOTIFICATION OF PUBLICITY OF THE MEDSTEAD AND FOUR MARKS 

NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN
Attachments: Statement of Representations (October 2015) (Final) (Complete).pdf

Importance: High

Dear Sirs, 
 
Further to your email dated 28 August 2015 below, please find attached a Statement of Representations to the 
Submission Medstead & Four Marks Neighbourhood Plan, in respect of land owned by Messrs I Foden and H Bethell 
at Woodview Place and Timbers, on Boyneswood Road in Medstead. 
 
I would be grateful for confirmation that my clients’ representations have been safely received and ‘duly made’; and 
for updates in due course on the progress being made with their consideration. 
 
Many thanks for your kind attention to matters – please contact me if you have any queries or require further 
information. 
 
Yours faithfully,  
 
Matthew Utting BSc (Hons) DipTP MRTPI 
Director 
 

 
 
11 Capercaillie Close 
Bracknell 
Berkshire 
RG12 8AX  
 
T:    
M:   
E:   
W: www.matplan.co.uk 
 
This email is confidential and may contain privileged information. It is intended only for use of the intended recipient. If 
you have received it by mistake, please notify the author by replying to this email or telephone (01344-481204). If you 
are not the intended recipient, you must not print, copy, amend, distribute or disclose it to anyone else or rely on the 
contents of this email, and you should DELETE it from your system. You should check this email and any 
attachments for viruses, as no responsibility can be taken for any virus which may be transferred by this email. Thank 
you. 
 
MatPlan Limited, Company Registration No. 7423701 
Registered Office: Lexham House  Forest Road  Binfield  Berkshire  RG42 4HP 

 

 Save Paper - Do you really need to print this e-mail?   
Try not to leave old messages attached unless they are relevant. 
 
From: EHDC – Neighbourhood Plans Shared [mailto:neighbourhoodplans@easthants.gov.uk]  
Sent: 28 August 2015 15:10 

mailto:neighbourhoodplans@easthants.gov.uk
hcollier
Typewritten Text
MFMEH-12
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Subject: NOTIFICATION OF PUBLICITY OF THE MEDSTEAD AND FOUR MARKS NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN 
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
NOTIFICATION OF PUBLICITY OF THE MEDSTEAD AND FOUR MARKS NEIGHBOURHOOD 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN UNDER REGULATION 16 OF THE NEIGHBOURHOOD PLANNING 
(GENERAL) REGULATIONS 2012  
 
I write to inform you, as a consultation body or consultee identified in the Medstead and Four 
Marks Consultation Statement that we are now in receipt of the final submission version of the 
Medstead and Four Marks Neighbourhood Plan along with all accompanying documentation 
required under Regulation 15.  
 
What documents comprise the ‘plan proposal’?  
The plan proposal comprises the following documents:  
(a) A map identifying the area to which the proposed neighbourhood development plan relates;  
(b) A consultation statement;  
(c) The proposed neighbourhood development plan;  
(d) A statement explaining how the proposed neighbourhood development plan meets the 
requirements of paragraph 8 of Schedule 4B to the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
 
Where can the plan proposal be inspected?  
Details of the plan proposal and downloadable copies of the relevant documents can be found on 
our website at: www.easthants.gov.uk/MedsteadFourMarksNP  
In addition, the full suite of evidence supporting the plan can be found at:  
http://mfmplan.org/  
 
If required hard copies of all of the documents listed above are available from East Hampshire 
District Council, or copies of the plan can be viewed at:  

 East Hampshire District Council, Penns Place, Petersfield, GU31 4EX  
 Alton Library, Vicarage Hill, Alton GU34 1HT (9.30am - 5pm except: Tuesday and 

Thursday 9.30am - 7pm, Wednesday 9.30am - 1pm, Sunday Closed)  
 Boundaries Surgery, 7 Winchester Road, Four Marks,  GU34 5HG - Open: Monday 8.30 to 

11.30 and 15.00 to 18.00 (19.00 Wednesday).  
 Mansfield Park Surgery, Watercress Medical Group, Lymington Bottom Road, Medstead, 

GU34 5EW- Open: Monday 8.00 to 18.30. Tuesday to Friday 7.00 to 18.30.  
 Church of Good Shepherd,  Lymington Bottom Four Marks, GU34 5AA Usually open 

everyday until dusk  
 St Andrews Church, Medstead, Wield Road, Medstead, GU34 5LY  
 Parish Offices of Medstead and Four Marks Parish Councils, Unit 32 Lymington Barnes, 

Lymington Bottom Road, Medstead, GU345EW (Open between 10-11am)  
 

How and by when must you make representations?  
Representations can either be sent via email using the above address or by hard copy to:  
 
Planning Policy  
East Hampshire District Council 
Penns Place  
Petersfield 
Hampshire 
GU31 4EX 
 

http://www.easthants.gov.uk/MedsteadFourMarksNP
http://mfmplan.org/
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Medstead & Four Marks Neighbourhood Plan  Representations to Policy 1; Policies Map; 
Submission Plan (August 2015)   and Policies Map Insets 2 and 3 
 

 
   

 
Statement of Representations, in respect of  - 1 - Prepared for Messrs I Foden & H Bethell 
Land at Woodview Place & Timbers, 
Boyneswood Road, Medstead, GU34 5DY 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 

1.1 This Statement of Representations sets out the case for revising the Settlement Policy 

Boundary (SPB) currently proposed around Four Marks and South Medstead by the 

Submission Medstead & Four Marks Neighbourhood Plan, to include land at 

Woodview Place and Timbers, on Boyneswood Road in Medstead. A Google Earth 

image of the land in question is contained in Appendix 1 of these representations. 

 

1.2 Land at Friars Oak Farm, Boyneswood Road, Medstead, is consented for 80 dwellings 

under ref. 25256/032 and comprises housing allocation FM2 made by East Hampshire 

District Council in the Submission East Hampshire District Local Plan: Housing and 

Employment Allocations. The relevant extract dealing with housing allocation FM2 

taken from the Submission East Hampshire District Local Plan: Housing and 

Employment Allocations is contained in Appendix 2 of these representations, 

together with Policies Map 6 from its accompanying Policies Map document.  

 

1.3 It will be noted that Policies Map 6 for the Submission East Hampshire District Local 

Plan: Housing and Employment Allocations proposes an SPB for Four Marks and 

South Medstead inter alia to take account of housing allocation FM2. MatPlan Limited 

made representations in May 2015 to the SPB proposed for housing allocation FM2 by 

the Submission East Hampshire District Local Plan: Housing and Employment 

Allocations, requesting that it be revised to include land at Woodview Place and 

Timbers, on Boyneswood Road. East Hampshire District Council responded to these 

representations as follows:    

 

“The settlement policy boundaries are being proposed to include the site allocations. 

This plan only deals with allocations for housing and employment to meet the 

numbers set out in the Joint Core Strategy. This plan has therefore not undertaken a 

review of all existing Settlement Policy Boundaries and this will be undertaken as part 

of the Local Plan Part 3 - Development Management policies and other allocations.” 

 

1.4 In other words, East Hampshire District Council has confirmed that the current SPB 

around housing allocation FM2 is a ‘temporary measure’, which it will review with all 

SPBs as part of preparing Part 3 of the East Hampshire District Local Plan. This 

approach accords with Policy CP10 of the adopted East Hampshire District Local Plan: 

Joint Core Strategy, which confirms that housing allocations “...will be identified 

through the Local Plan: Allocations, SDNP Local Plan or Neighbourhood Plans and 

settlement policy boundaries adjusted accordingly...” 
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1.5 Meanwhile, the Policies Map and Policies Map Insets 2 and 3 of the Submission 

Medstead & Four Marks Neighbourhood Plan also propose an SPB for Four Marks and 

South Medstead inter alia to take account of housing allocation FM2 - copies of these 

Policies Maps are contained in Appendix 3 of these representations. Leaving aside, 

for the sake of argument, whether it is premature for the Submission Neighbourhood 

Plan to propose a SPB pending the District Council’s adoption of Part 3 of the East 

Hampshire District Local Plan, it will be noted that the Submission Neighbourhood 

Plan’s Policies Map and Policies Map Inset 2 propose a different SPB for Four Marks 

and South Medstead in the vicinity of allocation FM2 to that shown on the Submission 

Neighbourhood Plan’s Policies Map Inset 3.  

 

1.6 The discrepancy between the Policies Map and Policies Map Insets 2 and 3 of the 

Submission Neighbourhood Plan is misleading and needs to be rectified but with the 

SPB also revised to include the mixture of open domestic curtilages and paddock land 

between allocation FM2 and Boyneswood Road; and land at Woodview Place and 

Timbers. If the SPB is not revised in this way, it would fail to follow any firm, 

recognisable or defensible feature on the ground, and would therefore be illogical. 

 

1.7 Objections to the Submission Neighbourhood Plan’s Policies Map and Policies Map 

Insets 2 and 3 are therefore necessary; and are set out in the following paragraphs 

of this Statement, together with a linked objection to Policy 1 of the Submission 

Neighbourhood Plan. 
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2.0 THE BASIS FOR OBJECTIONS  

 

A Current Situation  

 

2.1 The objection site lies to the east of Woodview Place and Timbers and comprises part 

of the properties’ domestic curtilages with associated development (tarmac tennis 

courts and suchlike) and open paddock land associated with the properties beyond. 

The objection site tapers to the east, such that it is contained by a densely wooded 

cutting along the Watercress Steam Railway to the south and by existing 

development on Boyneswood Road to the west.  

 

2.2 Directly to the north of the objection site lies housing allocation FM2 – there are no 

intervening boundaries between the two sites and they appear as one ‘on the ground’. 

The same applies to the mixture of open domestic curtilages and paddock land 

between housing allocation FM2 and properties on Boyneswood Road directly to the 

west; and the whole area is contained by a substantial block of woodland directly to 

the east. 

 

2.3 Accordingly, housing allocation FM2 merges seamlessly with the objection site to the 

south; and with other open land to rear of properties on Boyneswood Road directly to 

the west. All appear as one uninterrupted tract of land ‘on the ground’, contained by 

the densely wooded cutting along the Watercress Steam Railway directly to the 

south; and by the substantial block of woodland directly to the east. In other words, 

these two wooded features comprise firm and defensible boundaries ‘on the ground’, 

which if followed, would give rise to a firm, defensible and logical SPB for Four Marks 

& South Medstead in this location. 

 

B Objections to the Submission Neighbourhood Plan’s Policies Map 

and Policies Map Insets 2 and 3 

 

2.4 Page 23 of the Submission Neighbourhood Plan sets out its vision to 2028, which 

includes a desire to contain housing growth within “...clearly defined Settlement 

Policy Boundaries...” Indeed, SPBs are a tool used to set a firm, defensible and logical 

demarcation between urban areas and the countryside and as such, it is good 

practice for them to follow clearly defined natural and manmade features ‘on the 

ground’ - hedgelines, woodland and rivers; and roads and railways - to produce SPBs 

that will endure for the long term.  
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2.5 Illogical SPBs that ‘lack proper planning’ give rise to uncertainty, and come under 

pressure to change. The SPB proposed in the vicinity of housing allocation FM2 is a 

case in point, made worse by a lack of consistency: whilst the SPB shown on the 

Submission Neighbourhood Plan’s Policies Map Inset 3 includes the mixture of open 

domestic curtilages and paddock land to the rear of properties on Boyneswood Road 

to the north of objection site – a sensible suggestion – this land is excluded from the 

SPB shown on the Submission Neighbourhood Plan’s Policies Map and Policies Map 

Inset 2; and none of the Plan’s Policies Maps propose a SPB to include the land at 

Woodview Place and Timbers.  

 

2.6 So far as the objection site is concerned, therefore, the Submission Neighbourhood 

Plan proposes that an area of land which forms part and parcel of housing allocation 

FM2 ‘on the ground’ should be designated as ‘countryside’. This lacks logic and 

‘proper planning’ - the most logical and defensible demarcation between Four Marks 

and South Medstead’s urban area and the countryside in this location is set by the 

densely wooded cutting along the Watercress Steam Railway to the south; and by the 

substantial block of woodland to the east. The alternative would be a SPB with 

‘countryside holes’ within it. The case to include the objection site within an SPB set 

by the railway cutting to the south and the block of woodland to the east is therefore 

logical and compelling. 

 

2.7 In light of the above, the objectors have had Crayfern Homes Ltd prepare a sketch 

layout to show how housing allocation FM2 and the objection site could be developed 

within a logical and defensible SPB that would ‘round off’ Four Marks and South 

Medstead in this location. A copy of this sketch layout (ref. SK01) is contained in 

Appendix 4 of this Statement – it is based upon the development layout consented 

under ref. 25256/032 for housing allocation FM2 and would be delivered within 

logical, contained and defensible boundaries ‘on the ground’ that would endure for 

the long term. The arrangements shown on the plan for access to Boyneswood Road 

are safe, practical and deliverable but would be agreed in detail at the application 

stage and may therefore be subject to change.  

 

 C Objections to Submission Neighbourhood Plan Policy 1 

 

2.8 The last paragraph of Submission Neighbourhood Plan Policy 1 reads as follows:  

 

“Development proposals for the subdivision of residential gardens will be refused in 

order to retain the special character of the parishes.” 
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2.9 This ‘blanket’ policy refusal of any proposal to subdivide and develop a residential 

garden is wholly unreasonable and indeed, conflicts with the somewhat more 

measured advice set out in paragraph 53 of the National Planning Policy Framework 

(NPPF), which suggests that “Local planning authorities should consider the case for 

setting out policies to resist inappropriate development of residential gardens, for 

example where development would cause harm to the local area.” (emphasis added). 

As currently worded, Submission Neighbourhood Plan Policy 1 prejudges the proper 

consideration of proposals to subdivide and develop residential gardens that are on 

their own merits acceptable and which do not harm the character or appearance of 

their surroundings, or the living conditions of existing or new residents. 

 

2.10 The final paragraph of Submission Neighbourhood Plan Policy 1 should therefore be 

deleted, or revised to read as follows: 

 

“Development proposals for the subdivision of residential gardens will be considered 

on their own merits, with particular regard paid to any harmful effect on the 

character or appearance of the surrounding area; and the living conditions of existing 

or new residents.” 

 

2.11 The revised text set out above would allow proposals for the subdivision and 

development land to be considered on their merits; such that those that would not 

cause harm could be allowed; and those that would cause harm could be refused.  
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3.0 SUMMARY, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

3.1 SPBs are a tool used to set a firm, defensible and logical demarcation between urban 

areas and the countryside. As such, it is good practice for SPBs to follow clearly 

defined natural and manmade features ‘on the ground’, such as hedgelines, 

woodland and rivers; and roads and railways, to produce SPBs that will endure for 

the long term. The alternative is illogical SPBs that lack ‘proper planning’ and which 

come under pressure to change. 

 

3.2 Housing allocation FM2, on land at Friars Oak Farm, Boyneswood Road, Medstead, 

merges seamlessly with the objection site at Woodview Place and Timbers directly to 

the south; and with other open land to the rear of properties on Boyneswood Road 

directly to the west. All appear as one uninterrupted tract of land ‘on the ground’; 

and could be developed within strongly contained boundaries set by the densely 

wooded cutting along the Watercress Steam Railway to the south and a substantial 

block of woodland to the east. These features would comprise a firm, defensible and 

logical SPB ‘on the ground’, which would endure for the long term. The alternative 

would be a poorly-planned and illogical SPB with ‘countryside holes’ within it. 

 

3.3 The Submission Neighbourhood Plans Policies Map and Policies Map Insets 2 and 3 

should accordingly be revised, to show a SPB on the alignment shown by the 

unbroken heavy black line on the plan contained in Appendix 5 of this Statement. 

 

3.4 Finally, the ‘blanket’ policy refusal of any proposal to subdivide and develop a 

residential garden set out in the last paragraph of Submission Neighbourhood Plan 

Policy 1 should be deleted, or the paragraph revised to read in more measured terms 

as follows: 

 

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

From: Chris Paterson >
Sent: 08 October 2015 15:59
To: EHDC – Neighbourhood Plans Shared
Subject: SDNPA response to the submission version of the Medstead and Fourmarks 

Neighbourhood Development Plan.
Attachments: SDNPA response to Submission version of the Medstead and Fourmarks 

Neighbourhood Development Plan.pdf

Dear Vicki 
 
Please find attached SDNPA rep on the reg 16 version of the Medstead and Fourmarks NDP. 
 
Any questions give me a call or drop me an email 
 
Cheers 
chris 
 
South Downs Centre 
Chris Paterson 
Communities Lead 
South Downs National Park Authority 
 
Tel: 01730 819286 | Mobile:  
South Downs Centre, North Street, Midhurst, West Sussex, GU29 9DH 
 
Join in the South Downs GeoTour treasure hunt Find the secret caches hidden in fake bird boxes, hollow 
logs or false stones using your mobile phone or GPS, stamp your passport, collect points and claim your 
prize. Find out more at southdowns.gov.uk/geocaching  
 
This email is confidential, may be legally privileged and/or contain personal views that are not the 
Authority’s. If you are not the intended recipient, please notify us and delete the message from your system 
immediately. Under Data Protection and Freedom of Information legislation contents may be disclosed and 
the Authority reserves the right to monitor sent and received emails.  
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08 October 2015 

 
Planning Policy  

East Hampshire District Council  

Penns Place  

Petersfield  

Hampshire  

GU31 4EX 

 

Dear Sir / Madam 

 

Subject: South Downs National Park Authority (SDNPA) response to the submission version of the 

Medstead and Fourmarks Neighbourhood Development Plan. 

 

SDNPA officers have reviewed the Medstead and Fourmarks Neighbourhood Development Plan and 

all supporting documents and evidence. The SDNPA would like to commend the hard work and effort 

of the Neighbourhood Planning group and both Parish Councils in the preparation of their 

Neighbourhood Development Plan.  

 

The SDNPA have no specific comments to make on the Medstead and Four Marks Neighbourhood 

Plan in relation to meeting the basic conditions. The SDNPA would request that the Neighbourhood 

Plan recognises the close proximity of the National Park and the opportunities that exist for accessing 

the National Park for the purposes of enjoying the Special Qualities. It would be appropriate to 

reference the South Downs National Park in Policy 9. Medstead and Four Marks Green Infrastructure 

Network, ensuring the development proposals do not negatively impact the Green Infrastructure 

Network, or access to the South Downs National Park. 

 

If you have any questions regarding our enclosed representation please do not hesitate to contact 

Communities Lead Chris Paterson who will be able to provide further clarification if necessary. 

 

 

Yours faithfully 

 
 

Chris Paterson 

Communities Lead 

South Downs National Park Authority 

Tel: 01730 819286 | Mobile:  

South Downs Centre, North Street, Midhurst, West Sussex, GU29 9DH 

 



1

Hannah Collier

From: Errington, Pete < >
Sent: 09 October 2015 14:58
To: EHDC – Neighbourhood Plans Shared
Cc: Planning Consultations; Errington, Pete
Subject: Medstead & Four Marks Neighbourhood Plan - comments of Hampshire County 

Council
Attachments: Medstead & Four Marks Neighbourhood Plan HCC Response October 2015

_(HF000010271040).doc

Dear Sir / Madam, 
 
Please find attached the comments of Hampshire County Council on the submission version of 
the Medstead & Four Marks Neighbourhood Plan. 
 
I hope all is self-explanatory. However, if you require any further information please do not 
hesitate to contact me. 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 
Pete 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------  
Pete Errington  
Planning Policy Manager  
Economy, Transport & the Environment Department  
Hampshire County Council  
Elizabeth ll Court West - 1st Floor  
The Castle  
Winchester. SO23 8UD  
Tel: 01962 846766  
Mobile:   
Email:   
www.hants.gov.uk/county-planning  

 
*** This email, and any attachments, is strictly confidential and may be legally privileged. It is intended 
only for the addressee. If you are not the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying, distribution or other 
use of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error, please contact 
the sender. Any request for disclosure of this document under the Data Protection Act 1998 or Freedom of 
Information Act 2000 should be referred to the sender. [disclaimer id: HCCStdDisclaimerExt] ***  
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Medstead & Four Marks Neighbourhood Plan – HCC Response October 2015 
 

Section Para Comments 

Section 4 
 
 
 

Policy 11 
 
 

The County Council is disappointed to note that its comments on climate change and 
energy raised in our previous submission have not been addressed. The County Council 
reiterates its view that, in order to comply with paragraphs 95, 96 & 97 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), Policy 11 of the Plan should include recognition of the 
importance of energy efficiency and energy decentralisation. The following requirements 
should be incorporated in Policy 11 (or in a bespoke standalone policy on energy 
efficiency):  

 Proposals should demonstrate how landform, layout, building orientation, massing and 
landscaping have been taken into account to minimise energy consumption.  

 Developments must show that they implement measures to reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions.  

 Development proposals including renewable, decentralised or low carbon energy 
generation will be permitted, unless it is proven unviable to do so.  

Section 4 Policy 12 Policy 12 “Traffic impacts” on page 38 could usefully be re-worded to add a reference to 
demonstrating suitable mitigation in travel plans where these are required, and the need to 
assess traffic impacts of a development against the traffic generated from the development 
itself as well as that from all committed development in the area i.e. the cumulative traffic 
impacts of all development on the local network. The wording of the policy might usefully be 
amended as follows: 
 
“All proposals must be able to demonstrate suitable mitigation in travel plans where these 
are required. The impact of traffic generated from a development should be considered 
along with that from all committed development in the area, i.e. the cumulative effect of all 
development” 

Section 4 Policy 13 Hampshire County Council as Lead Local Flood Authority reiterates its previously submitted 
comments on Policy 13: Sustainable Drainage Systems. Those changes, suggested at the 
pre-submission stage, are consistent with the existing policy framework in the East 
Hampshire District Local Plan: Joint Core Strategy (adopted June 2014) Policy 25: Flood 
Risk.      
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Those comments sought changes to the wording of Policy 13 as underlined below for the 
reasons previously given: 
 
“Development proposals in the parishes of Medstead and Four Marks which are acceptable 
under the other policies in the Neighbourhood Plan, will be supported, provided they are 
able to demonstrate that the proposals, where appropriate, include one or more of the 
following sustainable drainage design features as part of the site’s overall drainage strategy 
to manage the risk of surface water flooding…….” 

Section 5 Paragraph 
5.5 

Paragraph 5.5 proposes a number of projects for investment using CIL funding. These 
include traffic calming which is sympathetic to the rural character of the area and potential 
mitigation measures at two traffic pinch points under and over the railway line. Any project 
coming forward for study and subsequent implementation would have to be considered 
against to the following County Council guidance on funding local transport schemes which 
may significantly affect their timing / deliverability: 
 
Specific transport schemes in the Neighbourhood Plan area are identified in the East 
Hampshire district Transport Statement as potential schemes for feasibility studies or 
implementation when funding is available. The schemes in the Transport Statement are not 
listed in priority order and there is no guarantee that they will be funded. None of the 
schemes in the Neighbourhood Plan area are currently prioritised for funding for feasibility 
studies and to enable prioritisation they would normally require committed funding to allow 
implementation. All requests for the funding of feasibility studies are prioritised by the 
County Council firstly on a district wide basis and then countywide. The earliest available 
opportunity for funding is in year 2016/17. However requests for feasibility funding in that 
year already exceed the funds available.  
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Hannah Collier

From: Lloyd Sweet, Robert 
Sent: 09 October 2015 14:54
To: EHDC – Neighbourhood Plans Shared
Subject: FW: NOTIFICATION OF PUBLICITY OF THE MEDSTEAD AND FOUR MARKS 

NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN
Attachments: 2015-10-09 Medstead and Four Marks NP Submission version HE RLS 

Comments.doc

Dear Ms. Potts 
 
Please find attached our comments in response to the consultation on the Medstead and Four 
Marks Neighbourhood Plan. Please do not hesitate to contact me if there are any queries relating 
to our comments or if you have any difficulty opening the attached document. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
Robert Lloyd-Sweet 
Historic Places Adviser (South East England) Historic England Guildford 

 
 
 
________________________________________ 
From: Small, Martin 
Sent: 28 August 2015 15:52 
To: South East Region 
Cc: Lloyd Sweet, Robert 
Subject: FW: NOTIFICATION OF PUBLICITY OF THE MEDSTEAD AND FOUR MARKS 
NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 
Good afternoon, 
 
One for the database please: 
 
Hampshire, East Hampshire DC, NDP, Reg. 16, 9th October. 
One for Rob please (if you are happy with that Rob given your workshop commitments ?) 
 
Many thanks.Have a good weekend and BH. 
 
Martin 
 
Martin Small BA (Hons) B.Pl DipCM MRTPI 
Principal Adviser, Historic Environment Planning National Planning and Conservation Department 
 
Historic England | South East | Eastgate Court 
195-205 High Street | Guildford | GU1 3EH Direct Line: 01483 252040 | Mobile 07879 435867 
 
www.HistoricEngland.org.uk<http://www.historicengland.org.uk/> 
 
Follow us on Twitter @HE_SouthEast<https://twitter.com/EH_SouthEast> 
 

http://www.historicengland.org.uk/
https://twitter.com/EH_SouthEast
hcollier
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________________________________ 
From: EHDC – Neighbourhood Plans Shared [neighbourhoodplans@easthants.gov.uk] 
Sent: 28 August 2015 15:09 
Subject: NOTIFICATION OF PUBLICITY OF THE MEDSTEAD AND FOUR MARKS 
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
our website at: 
www.easthants.gov.uk/MedsteadFourMarksNP<http://www.easthants.gov.uk/MedsteadFourMarks
NP> 
 
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
 
•         East Hampshire District Council, Penns Place, Petersfield, GU31 4EX 

mailto:neighbourhoodplans@easthants.gov.uk
http://www.easthants.gov.uk/MedsteadFourMarksNP
http://www.easthants.gov.uk/MedsteadFourMarks
http://mfmplan.org/


 

Historic England, Eastgate Court, 195-205 High Street, Guildford GU1 3EH 

Telephone 01483 25 2020  HistoricEngland.org.uk 

Please note that Historic England operates an access to information policy. 

Correspondence or information which you send us may therefore become publicly available.  

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Victoria Potts 
Planning Policy Team Manager 
East Hampshire District Council 
Penns Place 
Petersfield 
Hampshire 
 
neighbourhoodplans@easthants.gov.uk 
By email only 

Our ref:  
Your ref: 
 
 
 
 
Telephone 
Fax 

2015.09.29 
Four Marks 
and Medstead 
NP 
Submission 
version HE 
RLS 
Comments 
01483 252028 
 

   09th October  2015 
 

Dear Ms. Potts 

re: Four Marks and Medstead Neighbourhood Plan Submission Version 

Consultation  

Thank you for consulting Historic England on the Submission version of the 

Medstead and Four Marks Neighbourhood Plan.  We are pleased to provide 

comments on Neighbourhood Plan documents at all stages of preparation although 

we will prioritise our involvement to those areas of greatest sensitivity to change or 

where significant heritage has been identified as at risk. Where relevant we request 

that our comments are shared with the examiner. 

In general we feel the Neighbourhood Plan provides an appropriate strategy for the 

heritage assets of the Neighbourhood and, as such, within the areas of interest to 

Historic England, we can confirm that in our view it meets the basic conditions.  In 

response to the Regulation 14 Consultation we expressed our particular support for 

Policies 8, 9 and 11. 

We have previously commented on the Neighbourhood Plan at the pre-submission 

stage and were disappointed to see that our comments relating to Policies 2, 3 and 4 

have not been incorporated into the updated plan for the submission version.  

Nevertheless our comments chiefly related to wording of policies in terms of 

providing guidance to applicants and decision makers on the appropriateness of 

development and options to provide more positive wording, rather than their focus 

and intent, whilst it will be a matter for the examiner to determine whether the 

wording of policy complies with the basic conditions.  

As a particular comment, however, we would like to highlight that the status of 

Structures and Buildings of Special Character referred to in Policy 4 is left unclear, as 

far as we can tell. The plan does not appear to identify a list of buildings of special 

character and, as such, it is unclear where this policy would apply. We would suggest 
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these are a form of non-designated heritage asset as defined within the National 

Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and identified by local planning authorities 

through compilation of a ‘local list’ or through inclusion in the Historic Environment 

Record.  We note that the East Hampshire Local Plan contains a saved policy HE13 

relating to Buildings of a Local Architectural, Historic or Townscape Interest, which 

would also be considered to relate to a local list of non-designated heritage assets.  

Whilst the Council have not adopted a local list of such buildings they have confirmed 

they are currently planning to prepare one. We note that the Medstead Village 

Design Statement identifies a list of “Buildings proposed for special consideration in 

the event of proposals for their demolition or alteration”. The Four Marks Village 

Design Statement also identifies a number of unlisted buildings of local importance. 

Historic England strongly support the use of Neighbourhood Plans to identify non-

designated heritage assets valued by the local community and to provide guidance 

on development affecting them. Where the making of the Neighbourhood Plan would 

result in the adoption of the Village Design Statements as part of the evidence base 

to the Neighbourhood Plan this may also result in these lists of buildings being 

recognised as non-designated heritage assets.  

The present wording of Policy 4 requires that development for change of use should 

not significantly harm these buildings but it isn’t clear how such harm should be 

identified. The NPPF requires local planning authorities to identify the significance of 

heritage assets and to take this assessment into account when determining 

applications that affect them.  At paragraph 135 the NPPF states “The effect of an 

application on the significance of a non-designated heritage asset should be taken 

into account in determining the application. In weighing applications that affect 

directly or indirectly non designated heritage assets, a balanced judgement will be 

required having regard to the scale of any harm or loss and the significance of the 

heritage asset.” In making a balanced judgement the Council may need to take other 

policies in the NPPF and the Development Plan into consideration. As such the 

wording of Policy 4 may be considered as overly prohibitive and not in compliance 

with the NPPF. 

In response to the Regulation 14 consultation we suggested an amendment to 

highlight the significant harm referred to might be that to the ‘character’ or ‘viability’ of 

such buildings, where character would be the significance and viability would be a 

prerequisite of conservation. Nevertheless this could leave some elements of the 

significance of an historic building outside of consideration in an application. To 

represent implementation of the national and local policy at the neighbourhood scale, 

we would recommend an amendment to bullet point IV such as: 

“iv. the design and/or use will cause no unjustifiable significant harm to the 

significance, community value or viable use of a heritage asset a Building or 

Structure of Special Character or Asset of Community Value.” 



 

 
 

 

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
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With regard to Policy 2., we commented that the policy should provide guidance on 

how this affects proposals for development and, based on the supportive text, 

suggested amendment as: “Development within the Local Gap between 

Medstead Village and South Medstead  that detracts from the open countryside 

character, intensifies the use of land, or contributes to coalescence of the 

settlements will be resisted.” 

We hope these comments are of assistance to the examiner in reviewing the 

Neighbourhood Plan Submission Version. Nevertheless, we would be pleased to 

answer any queries relating to them if needed. 

Yours sincerely 

 
 
 
 

Robert Lloyd-Sweet 
Historic Places Adviser (South East England) 
Historic England 
Guildford 
Tel.  
E-mail:  
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Hannah Collier

From: Planning Secretaries >
Sent: 09 October 2015 15:25
To: EHDC – Neighbourhood Plans Shared
Subject: MEDSTEAD AND FOUR MARKS DRAFT NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN 2015-2028 - 

REPRESENTATIONS ON BEHALF OF WINCHESTER COLLEGE  (our ref: 22353/A3)
Attachments: 22353 A3 SY DMC 15 10 09 - NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN REPS.pdf

SENT ON BEHALF OF ROBIN SHEPHERD 
 
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
Please find attached our Neighbourhood Plan Representations in relation to the above. 
 
Please note that a hard copy will follow in tonight's post, we would be grateful for confirmation that they have been 
received. 
 
 
Many thanks and kind regards 
 
Emma Fellowes 
Secretary to Robin Shepherd and the Planning Team 
 
Planning . Design . Delivery 
bartonwillmore.co.uk 
The Blade 
Abbey Square 
Reading 
Berkshire 
RG1 3BE 
 
t :  
f : 0118 943 0001 
www.bartonwillmore.co.uk 
Please consider the environment before printing this email 
 

 

 

 
"Information contained in this e-mail (and any attachments) is confidential and may be privileged. It may be read, copied and used only 
by the addressee, Barton Willmore accepts no liability for any subsequent alterations or additions incorporated by the addressee or a 
third party to the body text of this e-mail or any attachments. Barton Willmore accept no responsibility for staff non-compliance with the 
Barton Willmore IT Acceptable Use Policy." 

http://www.bartonwillmore.co.uk
hcollier
Typewritten Text
MFMEH-16
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